#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI



APPELLANT

SAMMIE LEE JOHNSON

i

vs.

AUG () 3 2009 OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

NO:\_\_\_\_

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

#### CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The undersigned pro se, litigent certifies that the following listed persons have an interest in the outcome of this case. These representations are made in order that the justices of this Court may evaluate possible disqualification or recusal

1. State of Mississippi

2 Sammie Lee Johnson

THIS <u>3</u> day of <u>AuguS</u> 2009.

Sa mie Lee Johnson #58463 Unit-29-F-Bldg. Parchman, Ms 38738

#

Scarbrough V. State 3 so 2d 748 (Miss. 1948)1	9.

#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

SAMMIE LEE JOHNSON

v

#### APPELLANT

CAUSE NO:

#### STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

#### APPELLEE

#### BRIEF OF APPELLANT

COME NOW, Petitioner Sammie Lee Johnson proceeding pro se. and respectfully files this his appeals brief pursuant to the Uniform Post-Conviction Collateral Relief Act Mississippi code Ann. §99-39-5(2) and §99-39-21(3) and as good and sufficient reason your petitioner states the following to wit:

Petitioner is a resident of the Mississippi Department of Correction in the custody of Christopher Epps et al serving a natural life sentence. The sentence is illegal for the crime of Capitol Murder in violation of statute 97-3-19(2)(d) of the Miss. code ann. (1972).

The state violated petitioner,s constitutional right to a fair trial and or plea agreement and also denied petitioner Due-Process of law, When the state sentenced petitioner to a natural life sentence pursuant to a guilty plea. Where petitioner did not waive his indictment and the trial Judge sat as the sole sentencing body, and sentenced petitioner to serve the reminder of his natural life in the custody of the aMississippi Department of Corrections, without the petitioners punishment being affixed by a Jury.

This Brief is also based on Newly Discovered Evidence. the evidence submitted is a signed and sworn affidavit, By the man who actually commited the crime of Murder. Who is willing to swear to. and testify to the fact that the petitioner did not commit the crime for which he was erroneously charged with. and that he Darryl Swanier did in fact murder one Bobby Mcgroger.. and that the petitioner did not nor doe,s now kow anything about the murder, nor did petitioner hire him Darryl Swanier to commit the murder.

Mr. Swanier is willing and ready to testify in any Court proceeding or evidentiary hearing conducted by any Court. The evidence if it had been submitted at the time of the petitioner,s trial or plea.

agreement hearing would undoubtably actually adversely affected the outcome of his conviction and sentence.

The evidence submitted was not reasonablly discoverable at the time of petitioner,s plea agreement hearing. Which is of such that it would be practically conclusive that had such been introduced at trial it would have caused a different result in the conviction and sentence. The evidence would have exonerated the petitioner. Applicant Johnson has previously file post-conviction collateral relief proceeding in this case. Absent of the newly discovered evidence. This appeal is successive and based upon <u>Illegal sentence</u> and <u>Newly Discovered Evidence</u> and <u>Ineffective assistance of trial</u> <u>counsel.</u>

This application is also based upon the United States Supreme Court,s decision in <u>Apprendi V. New Jersey</u>, 530 U.S. 466 S. CT... 2348 S. CT. (2000).

Applicant Johnson states that in the decision of the U.S. Supreme Court in Apprendi which constitutes evidence unquestionably showing that applicant was denied Due-Process of law in the Court imposing sentence upon him which exceeded that of the statutory maximum for the specific crime involved, without any evidence of facts which increased the sentence not being submitted to a jury and proven beyond a reasonable doubt. The question is asked. Who per formed the repersentation in the trial Court ? Such claims and facts in support are set forth in this brief. Applicant Johnson believes that he should be allowed to persent his claim of illegal sentence to this respected Court absent of any prejudice. along with additional claims which are also contained herein. More-over. under unique circumstances presented in this case and the clearly convincing evidence contained in the recoreds well as in this brief applicant Johnson respectfully submits that there can be no dispute that relief is warrented i this case.

Applicant Johnson would state that all additional facts and claims in support of this his appeal are stated as best as he can not being trained in the science of the law.

#### ARGUMENT

#### A STANDARD OF REVIEW

A petition for post-conviction relief should be reviewed under the preponderance of the evidence standard "<u>Miss Code</u> § 99-39-23(7) (Supp.2001). If the petitioner establishes by the preponderance of the evidence that he is entitled to post-conviction relief, then such relief should be granted <u>McClendon V. State</u> 539 so. 2d 1375-1378 (Miss. 1989).

In McClendon for instance, the petitioner who had been convicted for the offense of Rape and incarcerated for such crime, was told by another inmate that a third prisoner had confessed to comitting the same crime for which McClendon had been convicted Id at 1376, therefore, The petitioner McClendon obtained an affidavit from the inmate who had heard the confession and presented that affidavit in support of his petition for post-conviction Id at 1376-77 under these circumstances the trial Court in McClendon denied the petitioner requested relief while errorneously applying the clear and convincing standard of proof to the evidence presented by the petitioner Id at 1377-78 on Appeal, The Court reversed and remanded the petitioner, s case for further proceedings, And directed the trial Court to apply the correct "Preponderance of the evidence standard in evaluating the petitioner,s request for relief Id at 1378. In the case at bar the claims are almost the same. There was not a third prisoner. The man who actually comitted the murder is confessing responsibility for comitting the murder. The preponderance of the evidence standard of review remains the same. In evaluating the request. That the petitioner Sammie Lee John son, s claims should by law be reviewed and adjusticated according to the proper standard. The preponderance of the evidence standard.

# (B). <u>SUMMARY JUDGMENT MAY BE GRANTED</u> BY THE SUPREME COURT IN A - U.P.C.C.R.A. CASE

The procedure for requesting for and obtaining post-conviction relief are set forth in <u>miss code ann.</u> §99-39-1 et seq. (Supp. 2001). Petitioner seeking post-conviction relief are generally categorized as "Quasi-Criminal,s in the law in fact for amny purposes the (Miss issippi Supreme Court). Treats them as such. <u>Milam V. State</u> 578 so 2d 272,273 N/1 (Miss. 1991). However hte term of the act specifically authorizes reliance on the Mississippi rules of civil procedure for some proceedings such as summary judgments under rule 56 <u>Id</u> at 273 N/1 see Miss. Sup. Ct. rule 22 (Recognizing procedure set forth in Miss. code ann. §99-39-1 et. seq. (Supp. 2001) for post-conviction relief.

The act specifically provides:

(1). If the motion is not dismissed at a pervious stage of the proceeding, The judge after the answer is filed and discovery if any is completed, shall upon review of the records, determin whether an evidentiary hearing is not required, The judge shall make such dispositions of the motion as justic shall require.

(2). The Court may grant a motion by either party for summary judgment when it appears from the records that there is not a genuine material fact and the movant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

Miss. code ann. §99-39-19 (Supp. 1993);

The act further rpovides that if the conviction has already been affirmed on direct appeal. Miss. code ann. §99-39-7 (Supp. 2001). The Supreme Court is empowered to grant the application, motion, exhabits, The prior records and the State,s response together with any exhabit submitted therewith. The Court may grant or deny any and all relief requested in the attached motion, <u>Miss. code ann.</u> §99-39-2' (6) and(7) (Supp. 2001): Although the case at bar is not exact as the case of <u>McClendon</u> Applicant Johnson asserts that the preponderance of the evidence standard applies in this case and in this Court. even on a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel, to grant summary judgment under the post-conviction relief statute Milam, Supra.

In <u>Mayers V. State</u> 583 so 2d 174 (Miss. 1991). The Court explained that "Well pleaded allegations of the complaint (For post-conviction relief) shall be taken as true...<u>Id</u> at 176 "Under these circumstances it cannot be idsputed that appellant relief is warrented in this case. Because the records will demonstrate that applicant Johnson was denied Due-Process of law and the U.S. Supreme Court,s decision in...... <u>Apprendi V. Newjersey</u> 530 U.S. 466, 120 S. CT. 2348 (2000). and.... <u>Blakely V. Washington</u> 542 U.S. S.CT. (2004). requires that relief be granted in this case.

#### CONCLUSION

Wherefore, these premises considered, applicant Johnson prays that this Court will grant this his appeals motion and reverse the lower Courts decision, and remand his case back to the lower Court for correction or in the alternative be granted a new trial. Johnson would also request that an evidentiary hearing be conducted in this case and that any and all other relief that this respected Court deems just and proper under the facts presented herein and according to the laws and constitution of the State of Mississippi and the United States of America.