SAMMIE JOHNSON

VS.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLANT

NO. 2009-CP-0486

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

.

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JOHN R. HENRY SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal against an order of the Circuit Court of Marshall County, Mississippi in which relief on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief was denied.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The record in the case at bar contains little more than the prisoner's "Application for leave to file successive motion for Post - Conviction collateral relief pursuant to Mississippi Code Ann. Section 99-39-5(2) Section 99-39-7." (R. Vol. 1, pp. 3-13) and supporting brief, and the order denying relief (R. Vol. 1, pg. 36).

The prisoner was convicted of capital murder in August, 2002 upon his plea of guilty. Thereafter, he filed three separate motions in post - conviction relief. Relief upon those motions was denied. He appealed the denial of relief on the last one; this Honorable Court affirmed the Circuit Court's finding that the third filing was time - barred and successive writ barred. *Johnson v. State*, 962 So.2d 87 (Miss. Ct. App. 2007). On 18 September 2008, the prisoner filed his fourth motion in post - conviction relief in the Circuit Court. In that motion he alleged: (1) that his sentence of life without possibility of parole is illegal; (2) that he did not waive indictment and that the Circuit Court erred in failing to permit a jury to set sentence; (3) newly discovered evidence in the form of an affidavit putatively signed by one Darryl Swanier, in which this Swanier claimed to have been the murderer. (R.

Vol. 1, pg. 1).

The Circuit Court denied relief on the motion on the basis that it was a successive motion and because it was time barred. It further ruled that there was no merit to the prisoner's contentions, aside from those reasons. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 36).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

Holding aside for the moment the prisoner's claim of newly discovered evidence, the other claims raised by the prisoner are clearly time - barred and barred by the prohibition against successive writs. *Johnson v. State*, 962 So.2d 87 (Miss. Ct. App. 2007). Furthermore, those other claims could and should have been raised in the prisoner's initial filing. Thus, we invoke res judicata as to them. *Rowland v. State*, 2008-CP-00731-COA (Miss. Ct. App., decided 9 June 2009, Not Yet Officially Reported). If, on the other hand, those claims were raised in the initial

filing, we invoke the doctrine of collateral estoppel. Pickle v. State, 791 So.2d 204 (Miss. 2001).

We now come to the affidavit filed by the prisoner, signed by a Darryl Swanier, or someone purporting to be Darryl Swanier, in which Swanier claimed that he killed someone named Bobby McGregor and not the prisoner. This affidavit was dated 28 November 2006. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 13). In considering whether a new trial should be granted on the basis of newly discovered evidence, it must appear that the evidence: (1) will probably change the result if a new trial is granted; (2) has been discovered since the trial; (3) could not have been discovered prior to the trial in the exercise of due diligence; (4) is material to the issue; and (5) is not merely cumulative or impeaching. The proponent of the evidence said to be newly discovered has the burden of proof on all five considerations. *Witherspoon v. State*, 767 So.2d 1065, 1067 (Miss. Ct. App. 2000).

The prisoner makes the claim that the testimony this Swanier would give is newly discovered. The prisoner, however, does not trouble himself to explain or to attempt to explain how he discovered this Swanier's alleged testimony. It is true that he claims that Swanier's information is newly discovered, but he wholly fails to demonstrate that Swanier could not have been discovered prior to trial in the exercise of due diligence. The Court has nothing more than the prisoner's word for it, and that is hardly sufficient.

The affidavit itself is ambiguous. While Swanier rather makes th claim that he killed one Bobby McGregor, he goes on further to state that the man accused of having killed McGregor did not kill him. The prisoner is not said to have been the man who actually killed McGregor, yet the Court is left to assume so. All that Swanier says with respect to the killing of McGregor is that the prisoner did not hire Swanier for the purpose. That the prisoner did not hire Swanier would not necessarily mean that the prisoner was not guilty of McGregor's murder.

3

In addition to the vagueness of the affidavit, the plain fact remains that the prisoner entered a plea of guilty to capital murder, presumably of McGregor.¹ In other words, the prisoner admitted his guilt for the capital murder of the victim. The prisoner's admission was under oath.² In view of this, the affidavit by this Swanier would not be sufficient to overcome the prisoner's statements at the plea colloquy. *Chancy v.* State, 938 So.2d 267, 269 (Miss. Ct. App. 2005); *Sherrod v. State*, 784 So.2d 256, 259 (Miss. Ct. App. 2001). *McClendon v. State*, 539 So.2d 1375 (Miss. 1989), cited by the prisoner, is of no purpose here. That decision merely held that the burden of proof in a post - conviction relief action is the preponderance - of - the evidence standard, rather than the clear - and - convincing standard employed by the lower court.

We would further point out that it is quite difficult to see how the result would probably change for the prisoner, if a trial were granted, in view of the fact that a jury would be presented with the spectacle of Swanier alleging that he killed the victim along with the prisoner's sworn statements that he killed the victim. Under such an absurdity, perhaps both should be convicted.

Given the ambiguous nature of the affidavit only now presented by the prisoner, together with the fact that the prisoner previously admitted under oath his guilt for the capital murder, the Circuit Court did not abuse its discretion in denying relief on the prisoner's successive motion in post - conviction relief.

¹ Given the perfunctory nature of the Circuit Court's order denying relief in the case at bar, and the fact that we do not have to hand materials from the guilty plea and subsequent motions in post - conviction relief, our knowledge of the facts concerning the capital murder to which the Appellant entered a guilty plea is limited indeed.

² The transcript of the plea colloquy is not contained in the record at bar. However, the record presented to this Court in the prisoner's last appearance before this Court, *Johnson v. State*, 962 So.2d 87 (Miss. Ct. App. 2007), apparently did contain a transcript of the plea colloquy, and pages 134 - 35 of the record were cited by the State in its brief to support this statement of fact, in order to rebut the prisoner's claim in that appeal of "actual innocence".

In his brief in this Court, the prisoner appears to raise issues that were not raised in the court below, such as one based upon *Apprendi v. New Jersey*, 530 U.S. 466 (2000). Those issues may not be raised here because:(1) they were not raised in the court below; and (2) those issues could and should have been raised in the prisoner's initial filing. The prisoner's sentence for capital murder is not an illegal sentence.

CONCLUSION

The order of the Circuit Court in which relief was denied upon the prisoner's successive motion in post - conviction relief should be affirmed.